[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Planning Committee
14 January 2020
Time

2.00 pm

Public Meeting?

YES

Venue

Committee Room 3 - 3rd Floor - Civic Centre

Type of meeting

Regulatory

Membership
Chair
Vice-chair

Cllr Keith Inston (Lab)
Cllr Anwen Muston (Lab)

Labour

Conservative

Cllr Alan Butt
Cllr Celia Hibbert
Cllr Clare Simm
Cllr Mak Singh
Cllr Martin Waite
Cllr Olivia Birch
Cllr Roger Lawrence
Cllr Phil Page

Cllr Jonathan Yardley
Cllr Wendy Thompson

Quorum for this meeting is four Councillors.

Information for the Public
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:
Contact
Tel/Email
Address

Donna Cope
Tel 01902 554452 or email donna.cope@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Democratic Services Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square,
Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:
Website
Email
Tel

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk
democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk
01902 550320

Please take note of the protocol for filming, recording, and use of social media in meetings, copies of
which are displayed in the meeting room.
Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports
are not available to the public.

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No.

Title

1

Apologies for absence

2

Declarations of interest

3

Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)
[To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record]

4

Matters Arising
[To consider any matters arising]

5

19/01228/FUL - Land East of 150 Gorsebrook Road, Wolverhampton (Pages 9
- 22)
[To consider the planning application]

6

19/00391/OUT - Land East of 86 Arthur Street, Parkfield, Wolverhampton
(Pages 23 - 28)
[To consider the planning application]

7

19/01048/FUL - Aldi, Goldthorn Hill, Wolverhampton (Pages 29 - 36)
[To consider the planning application]

8

19/00106/FUL - Land To The Rear Of 45 Rookery Road, Wolverhampton.
(Pages 37 - 42)
[To consider the planning application]

9

19/01105/FUL - Tudor Villa, Finchfield Gardens, Wolverhampton (Pages 43 50)
[To consider the planning application]

10

19/00947/FUL - Mirage Youth Centre, Howland Close, Wolverhampton, WV9
5PY (Pages 51 - 56)
[To consider the planning application]

11

19/01258/FUL - 11 Leighton Road, Wolverhampton, WV4 4AP (Pages 57 - 58)
[To consider the planning application]

Agenda
Page 2 of 2

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 3

Planning Committee
Minutes - 12 November 2019
Attendance
Councillors
Cllr Keith Inston (Chair)
Cllr Anwen Muston (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Alan Butt
Cllr Clare Simm
Cllr Jonathan Yardley
Cllr Olivia Birch
Cllr Roger Lawrence
Cllr Phil Page
Cllr Wendy Thompson

Employees
Stephen Alexander
Phillip Walker
Jenny Davies
Vijay Kaul
Tim Philpot
Donna Cope
Leonie

Head of City Planning
Senior Planning Officer
Section Leader Planning
Senior Planning Officer
Professional Lead - Transport Strategy
Democratic Services Officer
Lead Lawyer

Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No.

1

Title

Apologies for absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Gurmukh Singh, Martin Waite
and Celia Hibbert.

2

Declarations of interest
Councillor Wendy Thompson declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of agenda
item 9, application 19/00607/FUL, Wolverhampton Girls High School, Tettenhall
Road, Wolverhampton.

Page 3

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3

Minutes of the previous meeting
Resolved:
That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 10 September 2019 be confirmed
as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

4

Matters Arising
Councillor Wendy Thompson referred to Minute 7, 19/00705/FUL – 473 Birmingham
New Road, Wolverhampton, WV14 9PJ and enquired whether construction at the
site was being monitored as requested.
Stephen Alexander, Head of City Planning, confirmed that an officer would provide
Councillor Thompson with an update on matter.

5

19/00947/FUL - Mirage Youth Centre, Howland Close, Wolverhampton, WV9
5PY
Resolved:
That planning application 19/00947/FUL - Mirage Youth Centre, Howland Close,
Wolverhampton, WV9 5PY be deferred to a future Planning Committee.

6

19/00931/FUL, 19/00933/LBC & 19/00934/LBC - Old Hall Street, Bilston Street,
Garrick Street and St George's Parade, City Centre, Wolverhampton
The Committee considered a report regarding 19/00931/FUL, 19/00933/LBC &
19/00934/LBC - Creation of the City Learning Quarter, including the erection of new
teaching accommodation; extensions, alterations and internal configurations to
Wolverhampton Central Library (listed building) and Metro One (College), Adult
Education Building
(listed building), Foyer Building, Alan Garner Building, St George's House, and
associated access, parking and landscaping.
Mr Roger Jeavons addressed the Committee and spoke in opposition to the
application.
Phillip Walker, Senior Planning Officer, responded to the statements made and
confirmed that the proposals were acceptable as outlined in the report.
Members of the Committee agreed that the proposed development would hugely
enhance the city but wanted reassurance that the conditions requested by Historic
England would be met.
The Senior Planning Officer assured Members that the conditions requested by
Historical England would be met, and it was agreed that Members would be provided
with further details on this at a later date.

Page 4

Minutes
Page 2 of 5

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Resolved:
That planning application 19/00931/FUL be granted subject to conditions including:
 Archaeology
 Contaminated land remediation
 Drainage
 Demolition and Construction Method Statement
 Targeted recruitment and training
 Levels
 Tree Protection
 Landscaping
 External Materials
 Large scale architectural details
 Sample panels of the external materials
 Cycle parking
 Bin stores
 Electric vehicle charging point
 External lighting
 Provision and retention of car parking
 Travel Plan
 Details of external glazing for ground floor public facing college building
windows
 Noise report; Acoustic glazing and ventilation for teaching rooms
 Noise insulation for all plant and heating equipment
 Cooking odour mitigation
 Hours of construction and demolition
 Any necessary traffic regulation orders and reversal of the existing one-way
traffic system on Old Hall Street
That planning applications 19/00933/LBC and 19/00934/LBC be granted subject to
any necessary conditions including external materials and large-scale architectural
details.
7

19/01037/FUL - 141 Victoria Road, Wednesfield
The Committee considered a report regarding 19/01037/FUL - Proposed change of
Use from C3 to C4 - a four person HMO.
Mr Peter Milton addressed the Committee and spoke in opposition to the application.
Jenny Davies, Section Leader Planning, responded to the statements made and
confirmed that the proposals were acceptable.
Further to this, Tim Philpott, Professional Lead, Transport Strategy, addressed the
issues raised regarding parking and confirmed that the proposals were acceptable.

Page 5

Minutes
Page 3 of 5

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Members of the Committee shared Mr Milton’s concerns regarding parking and
access and felt the proposals were unacceptable.
Resolved:
That planning application 19/01037/FUL be refused for the following reason:
 Parking and highway safety
8

19/01105/FUL - Tudor Villa, Finchfield Gardens, Wolverhampton
Resolved:
That planning application 19/01105/FUL - Tudor Villa, Finchfield Gardens,
Wolverhampton be deferred to a future Planning Committee.

9

19/00607/FUL - Wolverhampton Girls High School, Tettenhall Road,
Wolverhampton.
Having declared an interest, Councillor Wendy Thompson left the meeting room
whilst the application was considered.
The Committee considered a report regarding 19/00607/FUL - Construction of new
two storey science building including multi-use activity studio, ancillary spaces, first
floor link to existing buildings with associated parking and external works.
Vijay Kaul, Senior Planning Officer, reported that since the agenda had been
published a further objection had been received regarding parking and highway
safety, air quality and environmental impacts
Trudi Young addressed the Committee and spoke in support of the application.
Members of the Committee welcomed the development in terms of the benefits to
education and community use and were satisfied that construction and highways
impacts could be addressed by conditions.
Resolved:
That planning application 19/00607/FUL be granted subject to following conditions:
 Materials
 Remaining tennis court improvements
 Community Use Agreement
 Drainage
 Tree protection measures
 Construction Management Plan (inc traffic control measures)
 Travel Plan
 Side elevation ground floor window (obscure glazed and non-opening)
 Landscaping plan
 Accord with recommendations of ecology report
Councillor Wendy Thompson returned to the meeting

Page 6

Minutes
Page 4 of 5

[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

10

19/00011/FUL - Land North West of Junction with Jeremiah Road, Woden Road,
Wolverhampton
Resolved:
That planning application 19/00011/FUL - Land North West of Junction with Jeremiah
Road, Woden Road, Wolverhampton be deferred to a future Planning Committee.

11

19/00795/FUL - Land West of 91 Goldthorn Hill, Wolverhampton
Resolved:
That planning application 19/00795/FUL - Land West of 91 Goldthorn Hill,
Wolverhampton be deferred to a future Planning Committee.

Page 7

Minutes
Page 5 of 5

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Agenda Item No: 5

Planning Committee
Tuesday 14th January 2020

Planning application no.

19/01228/FUL

Site

Land East of 150 Gorsebrook Road, Wolverhampton

Proposal

Change of use to a gypsy and travellers transit site, providing
temporary accommodation for travellers evicted from unlawful
encampments. Works will include installation of a perimeter fence
with security vehicle gate, a modular unit containing sanitary
facilities, erection of a secure bin store, and installation of
external lighting and CCTV.

Ward

St Peter's

Applicant

City of Wolverhampton Council

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Harman Banger
Cabinet Member for City Economy

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

City Planning

Accountable employee

Stephen Alexander
Tel
Email

Head of City Planning
01902 555610
stephen.alexander@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

Summary recommendation:

1.1

Grant temporary planning permission for one year subject to conditions.

2.0

Application site

2.1

This is a former sandstone quarry, which was utilised as a landfill site in the 1970s. The
site is nestled between Dunstall Hill Trading Estate, and residential properties 110–150
Gorsebrook Road, the surrounding area is predominantly residential.

2.2

The site is currently accessed directly off Gorsebrook Road for pedestrians only. The
land is sunken and is not directly overlooked or easily visible from the surrounding streets
or properties. The site has been vacant for a number of years, being overgrown with
vegetation and has been subject to antisocial behaviour and fly-tipping.

Page 9

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

3.0

Planning History

3.1

A/C/2803/79 - Short term deposit of domestic and commercial trade refuse followed by
deposit of general highways material over 2-3 years – Granted 8/11/79.

3.2

D/1023/92 - Installation of a landfill gas control system – Granted 3/11/92.

4.0

Application details

4.1

The proposal is for a change of use to a restricted transit site for travellers, providing only
for temporary accommodation for travellers evicted from unlawful encampments. This is
not to be used as a permanent site, but a temporary place to stay whilst arranging to
move out of the city. This is a stipulation of a High Court Judgement, who have required
provision to be made for a transit site for travellers who have been evicted from other
sites in the city which are protected by the injunction.

4.2

The transit site would provide no more than 13 caravan pitches, with space for one
caravan and two vehicles per pitch. There would be a manager’s office and sanitary
facilities at the entrance to the site, along with bin storage. Any additional cars
accompanying the travellers would not be allowed on the transit site and would have to
be parked off site. Provision for such parking would be made at a council car park on
Showell Road, off the Stafford Road, for which a permit would be issued for the duration
of the stay.

4.3

The transit site would be secured with palisade security fencing around the perimeter of
the site and a lockable double gate to provide security for the occupants. Additional
works include landscaping, improvements for ecology, flood lighting and CCTV.
Replacement and additional tree planting is proposed on the site and on the adjacent
Council owned land.

4.4

The managers’ office would also be used as an information centre for educational
purposes due to the site having historical geological outcrops along the western
boundary of the site. Proposed works to the site would expose the outcrops, providing
the opportunity for geographical research and education. Access to the site for
educational purposes would be arranged in advance by appointment.

4.5

In support of the application, the following documents have been submitted by the
Applicant:









Site Layout
Management Plan
Design and Access Plan
Ecology Management Plan
Ground Investigation Report
Badger Survey
Tree Assessment and Bat Usage
Bat Survey

Page 10

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED



Preliminary Ecology Survey.

5.0

Relevant policy documents

5.1

Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS)
Wolverhampton Unitary Development Plan (UDP)
National Planning Policy (NPPF)
National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
DCLG "Planning policy for traveller sites" 2015, particularly Policy H.

5.2

The site is designated as a Site of Local Importance for Nature Conservation in the UDP.

6.0

Publicity

6.1

At the time of writing 113 objections were received by the planning department.
Objections received:
 Insufficient detail with respect to trees, and transport statement;
 Overdevelopment;
 Loss of green space;
 Loss of woodland and trees;
 Unsuitable location in a deprived area;
 Fear of antisocial behaviour and crime;
 Impact on ecology;
 Impact on wildlife;
 Site wanted for children’s education on ecology and a pocket park;
 Carbon impact due to loss of trees;
 More favourable alternative sites in Wolverhampton;
 Traffic and additional strain on the surrounding highway network;
 Dangerous access;
 Funding, cost of the project, cheaper alternatives;
 Too close to a permanent traveller site;
 Impact on businesses and loss of businesses due to the proposed use;
 Impact on vulnerable children and adults in the area;
 Rubbish that’s left will result in vermin and smells;
 Flooding of the site and surrounding area and impact on waterways;
 Pollution of surrounding waterways;
 Loss of noise buffer (trees), disturbance from neighbouring commercial buildings
and disturbance from the proposed usage;
 Stress on local infrastructure;
 Out of keeping with character of the area and racecourse prestige at risk;
 Japanese Knotweed on site;
 Surrounding area is already over populated and this will add to it;
 Loss of the “Gorsebrook Gap”;
 Health and safety, fire risk;
 Impact on nature conservation and geology;
 Gas cylinders on site;

Page 11

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

























Loss of privacy due to CCTV;
Lack of investment in the area;
Off site parking too far away;
Due to temporary stay, the relationship with neighbourhood would be poor;
Risk of change into a permanent traveller site if not used on a regular basis;
In an area where traveller incursions do not take place;
Area is already busy with public events at neighbouring venues including Dunstall
Racecourse;
Additional strain on local schools from children attending from families using the
site;
Application invalid (Showell Road car park not outlined in red);
Impact on residential gardens;
Disproportional strain on a challenged area;
Animal welfare;
Poor plans;
Site is a greenfield site not a brownfield site;
Area too small for the traveller community;
Car parking on the site would be insufficient and overspill onto the highway;
Inappropriate location in a residential area;
Landfill gas site;
Insufficient lighting;
Unworkable management plan
Loss of potential nature reserve;
Inadequate resources in the area, schools, doctors etc;
Impact on Science Park due to location of car park;

7.0

Consultees

7.1

Highway and Transportation – no objection subject to conditions.
Proposed Use
The frequency of use of this site is anticipated to be very low. Current information from
comparable sites in Sandwell and Telford indicates no more than two incidences of
occupation per year would be expected. As stated in the Gorsebrook Road Management
Plan (GRMP) submitted as part of this proposal, all vehicle movements in and out of the
development site would be restricted, supervised and managed. Travellers’ vehicles
arriving at the development site would be strictly controlled and co-ordinated between the
Police, the bailiffs and the site manager. Whilst the site is occupied, the vehicle gate will
be locked, with any daily use vehicles kept offsite, in a council car park.
Site Access \ Visibility
Gorsebrook Road is a busy road that is classified in the City of Wolverhampton Council’s
road hierarchy as a local distributor. It attracts high volumes of traffic throughout the
entire day, including vehicles using the route as a cut through between Waterloo Road
and Stafford Road. The Dunstall Hill Trading Estate service road can also attract high
volumes of traffic and the existing junction of Gorsebrook Road and the Trading Estate
service road is a busy junction.

Page 12

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Vehicle access to the development site is proposed to be via a new access to be created
off Gorsebrook Road. The additional vehicle access is very close to the existing access
road leading to the Dunstall Hill Trading Estate. The visibility splays that can be achieved
at the new vehicle access are obstructed by the adjacent on-street parking that is already
taking place for the existing houses on Gorsebrook Road. While under normal traffic
conditions both the proximity to an existing access and the limitation of visibility splay
would represent significant safety concerns, the anticipated low frequency of use, and
strict management of the access and egress movements to the site mitigate to an
acceptable level any concerns over highway safety.
Conditions are necessary to require the strict management of the access and egress to
the site, and to state that the new vehicle access off Gorsebrook Road may only be used
for a strictly controlled traveller transit site and not for any other type of development.
It is stated within the GRMP, that any caravans evicted from unauthorised encampments
within Wolverhampton will be escorted to this development site by the Police and / or
bailiffs. In order to keep any disruption to the free flow of traffic using Gorsebrook Road
and the other roads leading to this development site to an absolute minimum, it is
recommended that a maximum of three caravans be relocated to this site at any one time
and that these caravans be correctly positioned into the pitches before any other
caravans are relocated. A condition to this effect is necessary.
Parking and Layout
Vehicles entering and exiting the proposed pitches will need to be carefully managed and
manoeuvred into their pitches. In order to facilitate this a device called a motor mover
will be required at the development site. The motor mover clamps to caravans and
enables their precise manoeuvring and positioning. At least one serviceable motor
mover should be available at any time at the development site to support the positioning
of caravans.
Whilst the site is occupied, the vehicle gate will be locked, with any daily use vehicles kept
offsite, in Showell Road council car park. This should be conditioned in order to prevent
any unauthorised vehicle movements in and out of the site.
Off Site Parking
Any daily use vehicles may be parked by permit in the Showell Road car park. In view of
the anticipated infrequent use of the site and low number of occupants, this would be a
rare occurrence with no significant impact on the occupancy levels of this car park. Any
vehicles parked on the highway would be few and infrequent. The permit required to use
the site can require daily use cars to be parked on the Showell Road car park. This should
be conditioned.
Servicing
The proposed converted shipping container will need to be delivered to the site when the
roads adjacent to the development site are at their quietest. This will be required so that
disruption to local residents, the businesses on Dunstall Hill Trading Estate and the free
flow of traffic using Gorsebrook Road is kept to an absolute minimum. These delivery

Page 13

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

times will need to be agreed and approved by the Council. This will need to be
conditioned.
7.2

Ecology/Landscaping – no objection subject to conditions
Conditions recommended in respect of Japanese Knotweed, landscaping, bird boxes, bat
roosts, badgers, surface water drainage, hard and soft landscaping, fencing, bollards,
gates, lighting columns, CCTV, bin stores and toilet block.
This is a locally designated Site of Interest for Nature Conservation (SINC). Although the
site is a designated SINC this is a geological SINC rather than an ecological SINC. The
works which are to be carried out enhance the geological SINC value by exposing the
outcrops along the western boundary, and will enhance biodiversity subject to
satisfactory detailed reports and mitigation that can be required by condition.
The development proposed will result in reductions in the tree, shrub and field layers.
The applicant is proposing to improve access to the geological exposure on the site and
carry out additional planting which will mitigate the loss of natural cover. Overall the
biodiversity value of the area will increase.
The ecology reports provided are satisfactory and the recommendations in the ecology
reports should be followed including:
 Replacement vegetation including trees (details required);
 Clearance should be carried out outside of the bird nesting season;
 Bird boxes should be installed;
 An additional survey for badger activity should be carried out prior to works
being carried out on the site;
 Normal precautions should be undertaken to prevent badgers being affected
during the construction period;
 Trees inspected had negligible potential as bat roosts but some artificial bat
roosts could be included when the bird boxes are specified.

7.3

Police – support the application.
West Midlands Police have assessed this application based on the likely impact on
prospective local residents, and the resources of both the local authority and police.
Paragraphs 58 and 69 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) recommend
that local planning authorities ensure their policies and decisions aim to create safe and
accessible environments where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not
undermine quality of life or community cohesion.
Furthermore, in providing this advice West Midlands Police has paid due regard to
section 17 Crime & Disorder Act & PIN’s 953 - The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 which
introduced a wide range of measures for preventing crime and disorder. Section 17 (as
amended by Schedule 9 of the Police and Justice Act 2006), imposes an obligation on
every police authority, local authority (which includes Planning Authorities) and other

Page 14

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

specified bodies to consider crime and disorder reduction in the exercise of all their
duties.
There would need to be a management regime in place to deal with any issues as they
arise. There would be sanctions in place for travellers using this site (deposits, paying
rent, CCTV monitoring, regular visits from the traveller liaison officer while the site is
occupied etc.). For the safety and security of the travellers utilising the transit site a 2.4 m
perimeter fence should be erected. This should deter all but the most determined
offender intent on causing damage to the caravans on the site. Sandwell have their site
covered by CCTV and monitored from their central CCTV monitoring silo –
Wolverhampton will be doing the same.
The proposal accords with the provisions of national and local policy in terms of the broad
aims and objectives of providing transit sites. A temporary consent will ensure that any
effect on the local community and environment can be monitored. This would mirror the
Sandwell decision and accord Wolverhampton the ability to study the impact of both sites
upon review as well as being able to look at the longevity of the site by reviewing the longer
term success of the Telford transit site. By delivering the site, the impact across the city
from unauthorised encampments would be a reduction in incidents associated with them,
a reduction in both local authority and police resources required to take action against
unauthorised encampments and security for those travellers wishing to stop and stay in
Wolverhampton for a given period of time.
When Sandwell carried out a before and after survey they found that the cost of
encampments to the council was £250,000 for the year 2016-2017 when a transit site was
put in place this dropped to practical zero for the year 2017-2018.
Most of these temporary sites are used but it is infrequent and for short stays only.
The Sandwell site on Bateman’s Hill has not caused crime, demonstrated by the crime
data for Batman’s Hill.
A trial period of 12 months is recommended to monitor the usage and the crime statistics
to see if a rise in crime has taken place when the site has been used. The Council can
then decide if the site is viable and to approve or refuse full planning permission after this
time period.
7.4

Fire Service – support the application.

7.5

Environmental Health – no objections subject to conditions.
The ground investigation report findings and the recommendations proposed are all
satisfactory.
An active gas control system has been operational on site for over 25 years. The control
system was installed in 1993 to prevent lateral migration of methane and carbon dioxide
from affecting properties in Glentworth Gardens, Gorsebrook Road and the estate on
former racecourse land including Viaduct Drive, Shetland Close and Darley Drive.

Page 15

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

As with a number of other gas systems on former landfills throughout the City, they
ensure that the gas control system at Gorsebrook Quarry continues to provide protection
to adjacent properties via a contract with a company specialising in landfill gas control.
The system is serviced, and the gas wells are also monitored and balanced, four times a
year. Monitoring results show that gas levels in wells located on land in Glentworth
Gardens, together with the well adjacent to properties in Gorsebrook Road, are below the
explosive range for methane.
To gain further reassurance with respect to the gas regime on its landfills, in 2018 the
Council commissioned independent gas risk assessments on all its landfills where active
gas control systems are operational (including Gorsebrook Quarry). The purpose of
these assessments was to review what risks, if any, may still remain with respect to
lateral migration.
For Gorsebrook Quarry, the gas risk assessment indicated a low risk of gas migration
from the site even if the control system were to be turned off. That is not the intention at
present, and the control system will remain operational.
In addition, for even further reassurance, an independent site specific risk assessment
has been carried out for the gas control system at Gorsebrook Road. The report has
concluded that if the gas collection wells are locked and secured and then covered with
stone, they will fall outside of any requirement for hazardous zone designation.
Whilst accepting the findings of these risk assessments, it would be the recommendation
that should the development proceed, a system audit should be carried out on the gas
control system to examine and verify its condition, its operating function and its long term
suitability. This should be required by condition.
7.6

Urban Wildlife Trust – No response at time of writing report – update verbally at
planning committee.

8.0

Legal implications

8.1

Developments in relation to Gypsies, Travellers and Showmen are governed by the
NPPF (February 2019) and the Guidance for Planning Policy for Travellers Site (August
2015).

8.2

Para 3 requires the Local Authority to balance the needs of the travellers with the
requirements of the settled population, meaning both sides need to be considered. Para
4i requires Local Authorities to reduce tensions between settled and travelling
communities, which the security features and consultation aim to address. Para 7 a)
suggests early discussions with both communities and their representatives, and echoes
para 3. Finally, para 13 requires Local Authorities to consider sustainability of their sites,
which is being considered with the request of a temporary provision, to be reviewed after
a year and para 13 e) specifically considers the effect of the local environmental quality
(noise, air, artificial light) on both the settled and travelling communities. CCTV and
artificial light locations will therefore need to be carefully considered.

Page 16

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

8.3

The Equality Act 2010 and the Human Rights Act 1998 are triggered and need to be
complied with all through the project, for the occupiers of the site as well as the settled
population. In providing this development, the Council owes a duty of care to both the
settled and travelling communities, which will either use the site or live nearby.

8.4

An Injunction has been granted enabling the Local Authority and the Police to remove
unauthorised encampments within Wolverhampton, on the condition that a site is secured
for the travelling community. This injunction has proved very effective, drastically
reducing the number of encampment and therefore officer time required to deal with
these issues. If a site is not provided at the time the Injunction is to be reviewed in 2020,
there is a real risk for it not to be renewed. [LW/06012020/H]

9.0

Appraisal

9.1

9.2

Principle of use
s.38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, requires that a
determination made under the planning acts must be made in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Paragraph 2 of DCLG "Planning policy for traveller sites" 2015 states:
“This policy must be taken into account in the preparation of development plans, and is a
material consideration in planning decisions. Local planning authorities preparing plans
for and taking decisions on traveller sites should also have regard to the policies in the
National Planning Policy Framework so far as relevant.”

9.3

UDP policy N5 “Protection of Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation and
Landscape Features of Importance for Wildlife and Geology” states the protection and
long term management of important features will be sought through the use of conditions
and management agreements where appropriate.

9.4

The site was designated as a site of importance for nature conservation because of the
geological interest on the site and not because of its vegetation or wildlife. The site has
outcrops along the western boundary, which are currently not visible due to the
overgrown nature of the site, which make it very difficult to access and see any of this
historic rock form. The proposed development would clear overgrown vegetation which
would expose the outcrops to the benefit of the site and for educational purposes.
Vegetation loss would be replaced by landscaping including off site tree planting, which
would increase biodiversity to the overall benefit of the nature conservation value of the
area.

9.5

This land has not been used for some years, the site is overgrown and in a poor
condition as a result of disuse. Its use as a transit site would be appropriate subject to
conditions mitigating the impact of the development on ecological and geological
interests.

9.6

The use of the site will be very limited in that it will provide temporary accommodation
only for travellers who have been evicted from unauthorised sites elsewhere in the city,

Page 17

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

the length of stay will be controlled by condition, and travellers from outside the
administrative area of City of Wolverhampton Council will be excluded. This is
considered necessary and reasonable in order that the site is specifically for use in
urgent cases.
9.7

The NPPG states that circumstances where a temporary permission may be appropriate
include where a trial run is needed in order to assess the effect of the development on
the area. In this case, a temporary consent is considered appropriate in order that the
level of use and its impact can be fully assessed, especially given the high level of public
concern. An application can then be submitted to make the site permanent as a transit
site for those displaced through eviction. The twelve month period of the consent will
commence from first occupation, giving enough time for the impact to be fully assessed.

9.8

The evidence from the Police and the data from similar sites in Sandwell and Telford
strongly suggests that the site is likely to be used only very infrequently. The
development of this site for the purposes of an emergency transit site is acceptable in
principle.

9.9

Highway Safety
Frequency of use of this site is anticipated to be very low. Current information from
comparable sites in Sandwell and Telford indicates no more than two incidences of
occupation per year would be expected. Any caravans evicted from unauthorised
encampments within Wolverhampton will be escorted to this development site by the
Police and/or bailiffs, for highway safety reasons. All vehicle movements in and out of the
development site would be restricted, supervised and managed, mitigating the impact on
highway/pedestrian safety. Subject to requiring the management plan via condition the
entrance/exit is acceptable. This condition should also relate to the development of the
site, especially in relation to the positioning of the proposed converted shipping container
which would also need to be delivered outside of peak traffic hours.

9.10

The proposal should include a motor mover which would assist with the manoeuvrability
of caravans into and out of their relevant pitches. The vehicular gate should remain
locked to prevent any unauthorised vehicle movements in and out of the site, in the
interests of highway safety. These should be conditioned as part of the permission.

9.11

Any vehicles required to be used in the day may be parked by permit in the Showell
Road car park. Due to the anticipated infrequent use of the site, usage of the car park
would be a rare occurrence with no significant impact on the occupancy levels of this car
park.

9.12

The low level of anticipated use, the recommended conditions and the proposed strict
management of the access and egress movements to the site mitigate to an acceptable
level any concerns over highway safety.

9.13

Ecology
The application is proposing to improve access to the geological exposure on the site,
and to carry out additional planting which will mitigate the loss of natural cover. Further
detail can be required by condition, to ensure that biodiversity is improved.

Page 18

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

9.14

9.15

9.16

The ecology reports which have been provided are satisfactory. The recommendations in
the ecology reports should also be conditioned, especially with respect to bats, birds,
badgers, surface water drainage, hard and soft landscaping, and CCTV.
Landfill
The site was utilised as a landfill in the 1970s. It has been confirmed that the site is
suitable for the development proposed (see paragraph 7.5 of this report), subject to
conditions.
Security and Fear of Crime
The planning authority have received a significant number of concerns and objections to
the proposal which centre around security and the fear of crime.

9.17

The Applicant proposes several mechanisms in order to mitigate the potential for any
security and fear of crime. Firstly, the site will be managed whilst occupied, ensuring that
the terms of a licence, which the occupiers must sign up to before they can access the
site, are being adhered to. The licence would restrict activities such as – no commercial
activity, no drugs, no lodgers, regulations on dogs, no horses, no nuisance or annoyance
to neighbours, including noise related issues, no cutting or damaging of trees, no fires,
no caravans/vehicles to access/egress the site without authorised personal (such as the
Police, Council authorised officers) etc. The proposal also includes CCTV (with
automatic number plate recognition, extending out onto the surrounding public areas),
along with flood lighting across the site.

9.18

The Police have assessed the detail and confirmed that they have no objections, and the
mechanisms proposed would address security and the fear of crime issues. Also, the
evidence from the Police and the data from similar sites in Sandwell and Telford strongly
suggests that the site is likely to be used only very infrequently and is highly unlikely to
increase crime. The clearing up of the site, and the introduction of surveillance, would
also, mitigate against the antisocial behaviour, vandalism and fly tipping, which the site
has already been exposed to. It is considered reasonable to apply a condition to the
consent that the site must remain under the control of the Council. Should the site ever
be sold then the planning permission for use as a traveller site would lapse.

9.19

9.20

Layout
The proposed layout is acceptable and can be controlled by way of appropriate
conditions. The layout has clearly considered vegetation, wildlife and neighbouring
properties. Concerns have been raised by members of the public with respect to fire
risks, especially the distance between caravans, gas cannisters and cars being parked
between each pitch. The pitches have sufficient space for a caravan plus two vehicles,
the Fire Service have confirmed there is a satisfactory distance between each caravan,
all of which meets fire regulations, and the layout is acceptable. There are suitable
provisions on site for users of the transit site, such as a toilet and shower block facilities.
The Fire Service have confirmed that a fire truck would be able to access the site.
Amenity
The proposed development is in a former quarry, on a sunken piece of land, nestled
between an industrial site to the west of the site, and residential dwellings east of the

Page 19

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

site. The site would still be screened around the perimeter by existing and proposed
vegetation, resulting in a buffer zone around the perimeter of the site. The proposed site
once occupied, would be at such a distance so as not to cause any significant harm to
neighbouring amenities, such as outlook, light, sunlight, privacy, or disturbance form
noise/smell. The development would not be visible, until well into the site, apart from the
perimeter fence, which can be suitably designed, so as not to be unsightly with respect to
neighbouring properties or the street scene.
9.21

9.22

Members of the community have raised considerable concern as to disturbance
emulating from the site once occupied. Frequency of use of this site is anticipated to be
very low. Whilst occupied the site will be managed 24 hours a day and strict guidelines
must be adhered to via the issuing of a license on occupation. There would be thorough
checks taking place whilst occupied, in order to prevent any disturbance to the
surrounding community.
Impact on local services
The site is required as part of the Council’s provision for displaced travellers and the use
of the site is highly likely to be minimal and for short periods only. The occupants will be
restricted to those evicted from sites within the administrative area of the Council. Any
demand for local services is likely to be very low. This can be assessed during the 12
month monitoring period and evidence of any impact would be required to form part of
any future submission.

10.0

Conclusion

10.1

The proposed development has been carefully considered against the policies in the
development plan, including UDP policy N5 “Protection of Sites of Importance for Nature
Conservation and Landscape Features of Importance for Wildlife and Geology”, and
national planning guidance including the NPPF, NPPG and the DCLG "Planning policy
for traveller sites" 2015, and account taken of all concerns and comments raised as part
of the public consultation process. The proposal accords with planning policy and the
principle of the use is acceptable subject to conditions including satisfactory details with
respect to ecology/biodiversity. The frequency of use of this site is anticipated to be very
low. Current information from comparable sites in Sandwell and Telford indicates no
more than two incidences of occupation per year would be expected.

10.2

The Applicant has put together a comprehensive application due to the sensitive nature
of the proposal. The application has considered all significant aspects of the proposal
and the site. A thorough appraisal has been submitted on how the site would be
managed and licensed to protect not only the people who will occupy the site, but those
members of the public who surround it. The usage would be governed by a licence
setting out strict regulations on how the site is used for the temporary and occasional
periods it may be occupied. The site would also be supervised by site managers to
ensure that the site is kept to a high standard, in the interests of all concerned, gypsies
and travellers and members of the public, providing the necessary security.

Page 20

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

10.3

All concerns/objections have been carefully considered. The management scheme, the
inclusion of CCTV, fencing, lighting, landscaping and tree planting will mitigate any
impacts on neighbours. West Midlands Police are supportive of the proposal.

10.4

The site is acceptable for this specific proposal, provides an opportunity to improve the
biodiversity of the site through enhanced landscaping and additional tree planting, opens
areas of historical geographical outcrops for educational purposes and enhances security
for the site and the surrounding area.

11.0

Detail recommendation

11.1

Grant planning permission subject to any necessary conditions including:
























Consent temporary for a period of 12 months (from first occupation) in order to
monitor the impact and level of use.
Limit the use to use as a transit site for travellers who have been evicted from
unauthorised encampments within the administrative area of Wolverhampton.
Limit of use to 13 pitches.
Planning permission expires should the site be sold to a third party.
Management plan including limit of vehicles on site, vehicular gates to be locked,
daily use cars to be parked off site etc.
Parking layout.
Landfill reports/recommendations including gas control system provision.
Submission and implementation of landscaping.
Sustainable drainage.
Wildlife/biodiversity reports/recommendations.
Boundary treatment.
Tree protection.
Construction method statement - delivery time for shipping container.
Footway crossing.
Motor mover.
Materials.
Lighting detail – including light spillage detail with respect to neighbours and
wildlife.
Bin stores.
CCTV.
Japanese Knotweed.
Maximum stay period 14 days and no return within three months.
Drainage.
Manager to be on site 24/7 when occupied.

Page 21

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 22

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Agenda Item No: 6

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 14th January 2020

Planning application no.

19/00391/OUT

Site

Land East of 86 Arthur Street, Blakenhall, Wolverhampton.

Proposal

Outline Planning Permission for Residential Development
(13No. dwellings indicative) matters for consideration Access to
the site

Ward

Blakenhall

Applicant

W. G. & M. Marshall Ltd

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Harman Banger
Cabinet Member for City Economy

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

City Planning

Accountable employee

Tracey Homfray
Tel
Email

Planning Officer
01902 555641
tracey.homfray@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

Summary recommendation:

1.1

Grant

2.0

Application site

2.1

The site consists of a redundant piece of land located at the end of Arthur Street,
between existing industrial units and a chalet development. The site can be accessed on
foot from Arthur Street (residential) and Cockshutts Lane (industrial). The site has some
tree coverage.

3.0

Application details

3.1

The proposal is for outline permission for access only, for 13 residential dwellings
(indicative layout provided). Access is off Thompson Avenue, along Cockshutts Lane
which is gated, and provides access to keyholders outside of business hours associated
with the current commercial businesses accessed off Cockshutts lane.

Page 23

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

4.0

Relevant policy documents

4.1

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

4.2

The Development Plan:
Wolverhampton Unitary Development Plan (UDP)
Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS)

5.0

Publicity

5.1

Petition containing 44 signatures, objecting:








5.2

Loss of parking spaces;
Access to the site limited;
Fire regulations due to the use of LPG gas on the neighbouring site;
Land stability;
Noise pollution due to nature of the neighbouring site being caravans;
Loss of privacy;
Fear of crime.

Eight letters of objection (including two councillors):
















Overdevelopment
Wildlife;
Access;
Traffic;
Air quality;
Noise Disturbance;
Loss of trees;
Fire risks;
Traffic congestion;
Privacy;
Wildlife;
Loss of use of land for parking;
Air quality due to extra traffic;
Security;
Fear of crime if the security gates are to be removed.

6.0

Consultees

6.1

Transportation – no objections to the retention of the existing security gates subject to
conditions that the existing access arrangements remain in place, the issue of keys to all
individuals and groups who will require access, i.e. emergency services, upgraded street
lights and improved pedestrian access, subject to conditions with respect to the retention
of entrance security gates, upgraded street lighting and improved pedestrian access.

Page 24

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

6.2

Ecology – the ecology report is satisfactory. Recommendations of report to be
conditioned.

6.3

Trees – no objections.

6.4

Community Safety – no objection subject to retention of security gates.

6.5

Environmental Health – condition a full site investigation, due to land gases. As such,
we would need an intrusive investigation and certainly some gas protection (membranes
or sub-floor ventilation) to be installed into new dwellings.

6.6

Public Protection – no objection subject to keys to the security gate being issued to future
occupiers of the dwellings.

7.0

Legal implications

7.1

The statutory tests for requiring planning obligations must be met if such obligations are
to be sought from the applicant. A planning obligation can only constitute a reason for
granting planning permission if it is necessary to make the development acceptable in
planning terms; directly related to the development; and fairly and reasonably related in
scale and kind to the development and members must be satisfied that the obligations
sought in this report will meet such tests.
[JF/11122019/A]

8.0

Appraisal

8.1

The application site is a piece of redundant land, between an industrial estate and a
chalet park, in an area which is predominantly residential, therefore, the principle of
residential development is acceptable.

8.2

The site is currently overgrown, with self-set trees and shrubbery. The trees are not
worthy of retention, and there is no objection to their removal, subject to a landscaping
condition. An ecology report is also positive, with no detriment to wildlife subject to
conditions.

8.3

The indicative layout is considered acceptable with suitable separation distances from
surrounding development, with no significant detriment to neighbouring amenities. Other
concerns raised from neighbours such as disturbance, fire/gas safety have also been
considered. A construction method statement can be conditioned, fire/gas safety would
be considered during the building regulation application and Environmental Health have
confirmed that there are no concerns.

8.4

The application is for outline permission and access to the site only, with all other matters
reserved. The initial application proposed access from Arthur Street, which is a terraced
street. This street is already heavily subscribed with existing parking taking place on both
sides of the street, making vehicle access to and from the proposed development site

Page 25

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

difficult. The additional traffic generated by the proposed development would add to
these existing concerns of Arthur Street, which was also one of the key objections from
neighbouring properties and would also increase the amount of traffic that would be
entering/exiting the Arthur Street/Dudley Road junction, which was unacceptable.
8.5

The applicant now proposes vehicular access to the site from Cockshutts Lane. This
highway currently serves an industrial site, Jewish Burial Ground, and a storage area.
The access has gates which can be closed between certain hours, as Cockshutts Lane
had been subject to anti-social behaviour and fly tipping.

8.6

Highways have confirmed that the security gate can be removed completely with
improved street lighting, replaced with a residential form of security gate or retained in its
current form. Subject to this, the access is considered to be acceptable.

8.7

The applicants propose to retain the gate and issue access keys to potential new owners
of the properties once built, in order to maintain security along Cockshutts Lane.

8.8

The proposal would trigger the requirement for a contribution to public open space, and
affordable housing. Off-Site Public Open Space Contribution £37,650.00 pounds index –
linked towards the management maintenance and improvement of the paths and play
area at Bromley Street open space or improvements to Graiseley recreation ground or to
enhance sports facilities in the city, and at least one of the total number of dwellings to be
provided on the development shall be an Affordable Housing Unit.

9.0

Conclusion

9.1

Subject to conditions and a Section 106 Obligation the proposal is acceptable and in
accordance with the Development Plan.

10.0

Detailed recommendation

10.1

Grant planning application 19/00391/FUL subject to:
Section 106 Obligation for:
 Payment of £37,650 index-linked for the contribution to public open space;
 One Affordable Housing Unit.
Any necessary conditions to include:
 Contaminated land/Intrusive Site Investigation (Coal/Landfill Gas);
 Levels survey;
 No more than 13 houses;
 Appropriate pedestrian crossing points on Cockshutts Lane for pedestrian safety;
 External lighting;
 Submission/Implementation of Landscaping;
 Drainage;
 External materials;
 Construction Method Statement;

Page 26

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED










Electric vehicle charging points;
Keys to gate to be issued to occupants;
Parking, cycle and motor cycle parking;
Renewables (10%);
Ecology report recommendations;
Street lighting;
Provision of bat boxes;
Bat friendly external lighting.

Page 27

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 28

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Agenda Item No: 7

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 14 January 2020

Planning application no.

19/01048/FUL

Site

Aldi, Goldthorn Hill, Wolverhampton

Proposal

Extension of existing food retail store (Class A1) with
associated alterations to existing car parking, access, servicing
& landscaping. The application includes the incorporation into
the A1 site of 2 adjoining residential properties and part of the
garden of a third.

Ward

Blakenhall;

Applicant

Mr Hamish Latchem, ALDI Stores Limited, Holly Lane,
Atherstone, CV9 2SQ

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Harman Banger
Cabinet Member for City Economy

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

City Planning

Accountable employee

Tracey Homfray
Tel
Email

Planning Officer
01902 555641
tracey.homfray@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

Summary recommendation:

1.1

Delegated authority to the Director of Regeneration to grant.

2.0

Application site

2.1

The majority of the site is occupied by the existing Aldi retail store, car parking, and
landscaping. Two additional residential properties, numbers 11 and 13 Goldthorn Hill,
and part of a residential garden area to number 15 Goldthorn Hill, would be incorporated
into the site for development. The site has a prime corner position, at the traffic light
junction to Dudley Road Local Centre, and Goldthorn Hill. The site abuts boundaries
with residential properties on Goldthorn Hill, Neville Avenue and Longdon Avenue.

3.0

Application details

Page 29

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

3.1

The current size of the Aldi store retail area would increase from 940 to1260 square
metres, with the gross external floor area increasing from 1394 to 1767 square metres.
The proposal incorporates design changes to the northern elevation facing Goldthorn
Hill, a 42m² extension to the service area along the southern elevation for a new loading
dock, an extension/relocation of the existing car park and formalising a new vehicular/service
access from Goldthorn Hill.

4.0

Planning History
18/01260/FUL - Extension of existing food retail store (Class A1) with associated alterations
to existing car parking, access, servicing & landscaping. The application includes the
incorporation into the A1 site of 2 adjoining residential properties and part of the garden of a
third – Refused 6/02/2019.

5.0

Relevant policy documents

5.1

National Planning Policy (NPPF)
Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS)
Wolverhampton Unitary Development Plan (UDP)

6.0

Publicity

6.1

Four letters of objection:








Loss of car parking;
Loss of housing stock;
Traffic disruption during and after development;
Highway/pedestrian safety due to the busy nature of the store in a residential
area;
Disruption to neighbouring properties;
Increase in volume of traffic;
Impact on the character of the residential area.

7.0

Consultees

7.1

Transportation – no objections subject to conditions.
The reduced off-street parking provision that is being proposed, and the additional traffic
that could be generated by the increased store size are Transportation concerns.
However, because of the improved site access, the improved internal layout of the car
parking area and because the existing roads are protected from inappropriate parking,
the impact arising from the proposals is likely to be low on the development site itself,
Goldthorn Hill and the traffic signal controlled junction at Dudley Road \ Parkfield Road \
Wolverhampton Road East.

7.2

Coal – awaiting detail – update at Planning Committee

Page 30

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

7.3

Landfill Gas – no objection subject to the recommendations of the site investigation
report.

8.0

Legal implications

8.1

Legal implications have been raised in other parts of this report.
[LW/06012020/X]

9.0

Appraisal

9.1

The three key issues in this case are the principle of the use, highway safety and the
impact on neighbours’ amenities.

9.2

Principle of the use
The proposal involves the purchase and demolition of a pair of semi-detached houses
(and half the garden of the property next door) and their replacement with car parking.
Since the previous refusal the applicants have improved the proposed landscaping.

9.3

The applicant’s agent has set out the retail planning policy need for the proposal; this is
not disputed.

9.4

The applicant’s agent also set out Aldi’s rationale for the proposed store:
 A modernised store would provide a better shopping experience for customers;
 The need to improve the efficient operation of the store, particularly in terms of restocking the shelves;
 The range of items stocked would not increase but the environment would be
more spacious for shoppers.

9.5

The applicants have proposed a landscaping scheme around the perimeter of the site,
which helps to soften the appearance of the car park in the street scene. This would be
subject to a detailed landscaping scheme to be agreed, which would be required by
condition, and for the approved scheme to be maintained.

9.6

A neighbour has raised the issue of the loss of housing stock. The loss of two houses is a
disbenefit but is not significant enough to justify a planning reason for refusal.

9.7

Highway Safety
The applicants have amended the layout to address concerns with respect to access
onto the site, and its relationship with Goldthorn Hill traffic light junction. This, along with
the detailed Transport Statement, has provided a justification for a reduced car parking
provision, and has proved that there would be no severe impact on the highway, and
therefore, the new arrangement of car parking, access, and manoeuvrability would be
acceptable, subject to conditions.

Page 31

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

9.8

9.9

Due to the increase in size of the store an electric vehicle charging point would need to
be installed as per the standards set out in the Black Country Air Quality Supplementary
Planning Document.
Neighbour Amenities
The car parking area has a boundary with neighbouring residential gardens. The
inclusion of boundary landscaping would provide a buffer zone around the perimeter of
the site. This would help to screen neighbouring gardens as vehicles approach, park and
manoeuvre in and out of spaces.

9.10

The noise assessment submitted with the application concludes that there would be no
significant impact to neighbouring amenities subject to conditions controlling
demolition/construction restriction times, restriction of delivery times and landscaping,
which should all help in mitigating any possible disturbance arising from the usage.

10.0

Conclusion

10.1

The application has demonstrated the reasons for the required layout, satisfactorily
addressed concerns raised regarding highway and pedestrian safety, and has
safeguarded neighbour amenities. Subject to conditions the proposal is acceptable and
in accordance with the Development Plan.

11.0

Detail of recommendation

11.1

Delegated Authority to Grant Planning Permission subject to a satisfactory coal mining
report, and subject to the following conditions:


















Submission and Implementation of landscaping
Sustainable Drainage
Boundary Treatment
Tree Protection
Mitigate the impact of Construction
Materials
External Lighting
Parking provision as shown, and to be provided before occupation/usage of the
store/and maintained as parking
Turning Area as Shown and to be provided before occupation/usage of the store
Cycle and Motorcycle parking as shown and to be provided before
occupation/usage of the store
Electric Charging Points and to be provided before occupation/usage of the store
Site Investigation Recommendations – Land Contamination and Landfill Gas
Coal
Hours of Opening
Hours of Operation During Demolition/Construction
Hours of Deliveries
Restrict Audible Reversing Alarms, no engines left running whilst
delivering/parked/or unloading or loading.

Page 32

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED








Bin Storage
Levels as approved plan
Ventilation/Chiller/Compressors/Condensers/Fixed Plant
Construction Management
No external stacked storage (crates materials, waste, refuse)
Retail floor Area not to exceed 1260m2, gross internal area and the net sales are
shall not exceed 1692m2.

Page 33

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 34

This report is PUBLIC
NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 8

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 14 January 2020

Planning application no.

19/00106/FUL

Site

Land To The Rear Of 45 Rookery Road, Wolverhampton.

Proposal

Erection of 8 apartments and 4 houses to include remedial,
access works and landscaping

Ward

Spring Vale;

Applicant

Mr Martin Howell (Ultra Developments)

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Harman Banger
Cabinet Member for City Economy

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

City Planning

Accountable employee

Vijay Kaul
Tel
Email

Senior Planning Officer
01902 553791
Vijay.Kaul@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

Summary recommendation:

1.1

Approve subject to S106 Agreement

2.0

Application site

2.1

The application comprises of an area of undeveloped land to the rear of 29 to 45. It
slopes upwards from east to west. Beyond the western boundary, there is an electricity
pylon with its lines extending easterly across the site.

2.2

Access is from Bayliss Avenue, a narrow residential cul-de-sac off Rookery Road.

2.3

There is a larger open space to the south of the site which had outline planning
permission for a care home but that has now expired.

2.4

Land to the rear of 41-54 Beach Avenue and 51 - 59 Brynmawr Road, is beyond the
western boundary, this benefits from outline planning permission for up to three units.

Page 37

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.0

Application details

3.1

The application proposes 4 detached dwellings and 8 two-bed apartments contained in
two separate blocks.

3.2

The houses would have two full storeys with rooms in the roof space, the apartments
would be spread over two storeys.

3.3

The houses would be served by private gardens and the apartment block would have a
communal garden area.

4.0

Relevant policy documents

4.1

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

4.2

The Development Plan:
Wolverhampton Unitary Development Plan (UDP)
Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS)

4.3

Affordable Housing SPD

5.0

Publicity

5.1

Six letters of objection were received, summarised as follows;







Increased traffic and adverse impact on highway safety.
Harmful to character of the area
Land not suitable - mine shafts, drainage problems, water/gas supply and electricity
pylons.
Loss of privacy due to land level and height of buildings.
Increased noise disturbance and light pollution.
Detrimental impact on wildlife.

6.0

Consultees

6.1

Environmental Health: No objection subject to condition(s) requiring scheme to deal with
land contamination.

6.2

Drainage / Flood Risk: No objection subject to condition requiring detailed surface water
drainage scheme

6.3

Transportation: No objection subject to conditions.

6.4

Coal Authority: No objection subject to a condition requiring a further site investigation
and if necessary remediation measures.

6.5

Western Power Distribution: No objection subject to informative about working practices
and clearances.

Page 38

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

6.6

Severn Trent Water: No objection subject to a condition requiring drainage details

7.0

Legal implications

7.1

The legal implications arising from this report namely requiring a S106 Agreement are set
out below. KR/19122019/C

8.0

Appraisal

8.1

On the 21st May 2019 Planning committee resolved to approve this planning application,
subject to the provision of 25% Affordable Housing across this site and for the
immediately adjoining site which has been granted planning permission (17/01495/FUL)
for 10 dwellings. This would have equated to 6 Affordable units out of the total 22
dwellings. The S106 has not been completed and therefore this application remains
undetermined.

8.2

Since then, the applicant has submitted a Viability Appraisal to demonstrate that the
affordable housing provision would render the entire development unviable. This has
been independently appraised by the Council’s appointed assessors, who advise that a
fully policy compliant development to include affordable housing would not be a viable
form of development.

8.3

The NPPF gives opportunity for a developer to submit a viability assessment if the
planning obligations would genuinely threaten the overall viability of the development. In
this instance, it is recommended that affordable housing obligations should be waived, on
a pro-rata basis for any dwellings that are ready for occupation within three years of the
date that non-viability was confirmed (4th December 2019), with the full requirement
applying to those that are not ready for occupation by that date.

8.4

The remainder the planning assessment remains unaltered and is re-iterated below.

8.5

Although the widening of Bayliss Avenue providing 1800mm wide pavements and
a 5500mm wide highway to access the development have previously been approved, a
condition will be required for these works to be undertaken should the current scheme be
developed in advance of the 10-dwelling scheme.

8.6

The height of the apartments and houses is acceptable when viewed in conjunction with
surrounding land form and development. The external design respects the local
character and would contribute to the varied dwelling types already found in the area.

8.7

The proposed houses would be at least 24.5m away from those fronting Bayliss Avenue.
This exceeds the Council’s minimum separation standard of 22m. This separation
distance, together with proposed boundary treatments, would be sufficient to protect the
privacy of neighbours. This development would be screened from dwellings fronting
Rookery Road by the 10 dwellings already approved.

8.8

The proposed means of access and highway improvements to Bayliss Avenue are the
same as previously approved for the development of 10 dwellings. With two parking

Page 39

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

spaces per dwelling, one space per apartment with visitor parking and motor cycle bays,
there would be sufficient off-street parking provision.

9.0

Conclusion

9.1

The proposed development is acceptable and in accordance with the development plan
subject to completion of a S106 agreement.

10.0

Detail recommendation

10.1

That the Strategic Director Place be given delegated authority to grant planning
application 19/00106/FUL subject to:
(i) Section 106 Agreement to secure:
 Provision of 25% Affordable Housing on a pro-rata basis for each dwelling that is
not ready for occupation on 4th December 2022
(ii) Subject to any appropriate conditions including (but not limited to):
















External materials.
Levels.
Construction Management Plan (inc operational hours).
Land contamination and ground gas.
Intrusive site investigation (coal mining).
Drainage.
Landscaping.
Boundary treatments and retaining structures.
Electric charging points.
Renewable energy.
No external lighting without approval.
Remove PD rights for rear extensions and dormers.
No more than three dwellings to be occupied prior to Bayliss Avenue Road
widening.
1.8m footway on both sides of widened road.
Long-term Landscape Management Plan

Page 40

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 9

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 14 January 2020

Planning application no.

19/01105/FUL

Site

Tudor Villa, Finchfield Gardens, Wolverhampton

Proposal

Front, side and rear extensions, plus a dormer window in the
rear roof space

Ward

Park;

Applicant

Mr Avtar Suniara

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Harman Banger
Cabinet Member for City Economy

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

City Planning

Accountable employee

Colin Noakes
Tel
Email

Senior Planning Officer
01902 551124
colin.noakes@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

Summary recommendation:

1.1

Grant, subject to conditions

2.0

Application site

2.1

The application property is a detached house located on a private road, accessed off
Finchfield Road. The property is set within substantial grounds, which has significant
landscaping and tree cover. The large rear garden is L-shaped

2.2

The dwelling is located in the Bantock House Conservation Area, within Finchfield
Gardens, which was added at a later date to the conservation area and forms a very
distinct character area of its own. The dwellings within Finchfield Gardens are much
later in date than the core of the conservation area and consist of a mix of styles started
by Major Hutchinson Smith in the 1920s with a distinct Dutch Colonial Style, which was
later added to with other styles by subsequent architects. This particular character area
of the conservation area is typified by large detached dwellings set in large plots within a
mature, green, leafy setting.

Page 43

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.0

Application details

3.1

The application seeks planning permission for a small extension to the front of the
garage in addition to a two-storey side extension and a mixture of single and two storey
extensions to the rear. In addition, the proposal includes a dormer window in the rear
roof slope.

4.0

Relevant policy documents

4.1

National Planning Policy (NPPF)
Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS)
Wolverhampton Unitary Development Plan (UDP)

5.0

Publicity

5.1

There are 32 objectors from 25 addresses. The material planning objections can be
summarised as follows:
 Contrary to planning policy
 Fails to preserve or enhance the character of the conservation area
 Adversely affects neighbour amenity
 The extension is out of scale and character with the existing building
 The design and materials are inappropriate
 Drainage problems
 Damage to trees

6.0

Consultees

6.1

Conservation – No objections, subject to conditions

6.2

Tree officer – No objections, subject to conditions

7.0

Legal implications

7.1

The legal implications arising from this report are set out below. KR/19122019/B

8.0

Appraisal

8.1

The main issues regarding this application are:
 Impact on the conservation area
 Neighbour amenity
 Design and materials

Impact on the Conservation Area
8.2

Tudor Villa is a later addition to the road than the Hutchinson Smith era, built in a 20 th
Century mock Tudor style. The proposed alterations to the front of the dwelling will have

Page 44

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

a limited impact on the character or appearance of the conservation area. From the front
elevation, the two storey side extension will appear subservient to the main house. The
chimney will be retained in situ and the second storey extension and roof structure will be
set back and down, as is the standard practice with two storey side extensions. The side
extension (when viewed from the road) is stepped in from the side boundary with the
neighbouring dwelling to ensure that an acceptable gap between properties
remains. Though the proposal will be increasing the general massing of the frontage of
Tudor Villa, it is considered that the sensitive, subservient nature of the extension and its
design will have a minimal impact and will preserve the character and appearance of the
conservation area.
8.3

Although the proposed rear element is significant in scale and mass, it will not have a
negative impact on the character or appearance of the conservation area, as only a small
portion of the contemporary built form on each flank will be visible from the street.

8.4

The design and materials proposed for the rear extension are a significant change from
the traditional built form of the host property. However, the proposed contemporary
architecture is of a high quality and will clearly provide a distinction between old and new.
In this instance, the size of the proposed rear extension is appropriate to the scale of the
application plot as there will be significant private amenity space remaining.

8.5

The proposal does require the construction to be close to mature trees within the rear
garden. However, providing appropriate construction methods are used and finished
levels are controlled then harmful damage to root protection areas can be avoided.
Therefore, if planning committee is minded to approve the application, conditions would
be imposed to secure tree protection measures and finished levels to be agreed.

Neighbour Amenity
8.6

The site boundary is shared with several properties, but due to the size and
orientation of the proposed development in relation to the surrounding rear gardens,
these properties will not be detrimentally affected by the development. The rear garden
also has an array of mature trees and general landscaping along its boundaries which
shield the rear garden from neighbouring properties. The neighbouring property,
Fairways, is the most exposed to the proposed development. This extended property
is angled away from the boundary with Tudor Villa. Fairways facing first floor windows
are to non-habitable rooms. There are windows at ground floor facing onto the
application site, however, these are not the only windows within this room.

8.7

The increased flat roofed garage extension will be built immediately adjacent to the
neighbour’s garage and therefore will not have any unduly negative impacts on
neighbour amenity.

8.8

The first floor of the side extension is set back from the boundary with Fairways. This
together with the distance and angled position of the neighbour’s property results in an
acceptable degree of distance between buildings.

Page 45

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

8.9

The proposed rear extensions are large but have also been set back from the boundary
with Fairways to alleviate the impact of the development on neighbour amenity. The
single storey element of the rear extension is set back from the adjoining boundary with a
proposed planted border between the extension and the perimeter fence to soften the
effect of the building. The first floor element at its closest point is two metres from the
neighbouring boundary and veers away to four metres at its furthest point. The
extensions are a sufficient distance away from Fairways so as not to have an
unreasonable impact on amenity.

8.10

The dormer window in the rear roof space is orientated to overlook the applicant’s
property. Due to the orientation of the windows, the generous garden plots of
neighbouring properties, and the substantial tree cover, the dormer doesn’t cause any
undue overlooking issues.

8.11

Due to the location and orientation of the proposed extensions, the extensive tree cover
and distance between neighbouring properties the proposed development will not have
an unacceptably harmful effect on the reasonable amenities of neighbouring properties in
terms of overlooking and privacy.

Design and Materials
8.12

The design of the front and side extensions is in keeping with the appearance of the
original property. The subservient nature of the side extension will allow the original built
form of the property to be easily recognised. The contemporary design of the rear
extensions is a successful contrast to the original built form. The bespoke design of the
extension will make a positive contribution to the bespoke and diverse character of
properties that populate Finchfield Gardens.

8.13

The materials to be used in the construction will be key to the acceptability of the
development, therefore if members are minded to approve the application a planning
condition requiring the materials to be agreed by the Local Planning Authority will be
required.

9.0

Conclusion

9.1

The contemporary and traditional style of the proposed extensions is in keeping with the
varied design and styles characterised by properties within Finchfield Gardens.
Therefore, the character of this part of the conservation area will be preserved.

9.2

Due to the siting and orientation of the proposed extensions, the extensive tree cover
and distance between neighbouring properties, the proposed development will not have
an unacceptably harmful effect on neighbour amenity.

Page 46

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

10.0

Detail recommendation

10.1

Planning permission is granted for planning application 19/01105/FUL subject to the
following conditions:






Submission of materials for approval
Levels
Tree protection measures
Drainage details
Details of windows to be approved

Page 47

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Page 48

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 10

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 14 January 2020

Planning application no.

19/00947/FUL

Site

Mirage Youth Centre, Howland Close, WV9 5PY

Proposal

Change of Use from former Youth Centre (D1) to Residential
Children's Home (C2) with internal alterations to create nine
bedrooms and other ancillary spaces.

Ward

Oxley;

Applicant

Mr Anoop Nath

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Harman Banger
Cabinet Member for City Economy

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

City Planning

Accountable employee

Jennifer Nicholds
Tel
Email

Planning Officer
01902 555699
Jennifer.Nicholds@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

Summary recommendation:

1.1

Delegated authority to the Director of Regeneration to grant subject to the Environment
Agency withdrawing their objection.

2.0

Application site

2.1

The site is the former Mirage Youth Centre which has been vacant for some time. The
property is situated at the end of Howland Close adjacent to areas of open space and
residential dwellings.

3.0

Application details

3.1

The application follows a previously non-determined application which required a flood
risk assessment. A flood risk assessment was submitted as part of this application

3.2

The proposal is to change the use of the building from a youth centre (D1) to a residential
care home (C2) for up to six children with learning difficulties.

Page 51

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

3.3

Internal changes will be made to create nine en-suite bedrooms, six of which are for
children and three for staff members, alongside a kitchen, office, sensory room, living
area, dining area, TV room, reception and bathroom.

3.4

Some external changes to doors and windows will be made to create a new entrance
and to block some windows for privacy.

3.5

The scheme will use the existing car park provision of 17 general spaces plus one
disabled space to accommodate up to ten full time members of staff and visitors.

3.6

An application was approved in 2019 for a mesh boundary fence which is intended to be
implemented as part of this application (19/00091/FUL).

4.0

Relevant policy documents

4.1

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Wolverhampton Unitary Development Plan (UDP)
Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS)

5.0

Publicity

5.1

Four individual letters of objection and a letter of objection signed by six people were
received raising the following issues:





Fear of crime and anti-social behaviour from the children residing in the home;
Disruption and road safety concerns from the coming and going of cars caused by staff
and visitors to the home;
Noise disturbance;
Parking concerns.

6.0

Consultees

6.1

Transport: no objection.

6.2

Police: no objection.

6.3

Environment Agency: objection due to data discrepancy.

6.4

Children’s services: no objection.

7.0

Legal implications

7.1

The legal implications arising from this report are set out below. KR/19122019/A

Page 52

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

8.0

Appraisal

8.1

The site is predominantly residential and the change of use to a residential care home
would not be out of character with the area. The proposal will bring a vacant building
back into use to provide a needed service to the area.

8.2

The proposal is using the existing car park which provides 18 spaces to meet the
required parking provision. There will be a maximum of 10 staff members in the day
leaving at least 8 parking spaces for visitors. There will be no adverse impact regarding
highway safety.

8.3

There will be two shift changes for members of staff around 10pm and 8am, a manager
who will work Monday-Friday 9am-5pm, a monthly visit from a psychologist and a six
monthly visit from social workers. The children will attend local schools. The disturbance
to neighbours from cars coming and going from staff members or family would not be
considerably different to that of the youth centre when it was open or that of a large
residential household.

8.4

The children residing here will be under 24hour care with a minimum of 1:1 staff to child
ratio. The staff will be trained and qualified in line with OFSTED requirements. A full
management plan will be conditioned to ensure the safety of the children living in the
home and the surrounding residents. There have been no objections from the Police.

8.5

The building is detached and not directly adjacent to any homes. A planting scheme has
been submitted and there will therefore be no adverse impact to neighbour amenity in
terms of noise or privacy.

8.6

The Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) submitted with the application has stated that the
Environment Agency data is out of date and that the site is no longer in Flood Risk Zone
3 and therefore the application does not require a FRA. The Environment Agency have
requested evidence of this and will not remove their objection without it. The applicant
are in talks with the Environment Agency to resolve this, which may take some time
therefore we are requesting delegated authority to grant subject to the removal of the
objection.

9.0

Conclusion

9.1

The proposed children’s care home would provide a needed service. The children will be
under 24-hour care to ensure a high level of care to the children but also to protect the
safety and amenity of the local residents. Sufficient parking is provided to support the
property and there will be minimal impact to residents in terms of staff coming and going
to the property.

Page 53

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

10.0

Detail recommendation

10.1

Grant planning subject to any necessary conditions including:








Detailed management scheme
Limit number of children to six
Up to date Flood Risk Assessment to overturn the Environment Agency objection
Bin Storage
Bike storage
Electrical vehicle charging points

Page 54

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda Item No: 11

Planning Committee
Tuesday, 14 January 2020
Planning application no.

19/01258/FUL

Site

11 Leighton Road, Wolverhampton, WV4 4AP

Proposal

Retrospective application for raised terrace

Ward

Penn;

Applicant

Mr Hardeep Singh

Cabinet member with lead
responsibility

Councillor Harman Banger
Cabinet Member for City Economy

Accountable Director

Richard Lawrence, Director of Regeneration

Originating service

Planning

Accountable employee

Alisha Paul
Tel
Email

Planning Officer
01902 550348
Alisha.paul@wolverhampton.gov.uk

1.0

Summary recommendation:

1.1

Refuse application.

2.0

Application site

2.1

The application dwelling is a semi-detached property on Leighton Road. The application
site is on higher ground to neighbouring gardens to the east. Land levels are stepped in
the rear garden of the application site. The gardens in this row of houses are
characterised by long, mature rear gardens where land levels decrease towards the rear
boundaries.

3.0

Application details

3.1

The planning application seeks retrospective planning permission for a raised terrace in
the rear garden.

4.0

Relevant policy documents

4.1

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
The Development Plan
Wolverhampton Unitary Development Plan (UDP)

Page 57

This report is PUBLIC
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Black Country Core Strategy (BCCS)
5.0

Publicity

5.1

Three objections were received. Comments are summarised as follows:
 Overlooking
 Privacy
 Visual Amenity

6.0

Consultees

6.1

No consultees

7.0

Legal implications

7.1

There are no legal implications arising from this report [LW/06012020/I]

8.0

Appraisal

8.1

The application site was granted previous planning permission for a single storey rear
extension 19/00354/FUL which has been built and completed. Subsequently, a raised
terrace was created in the rear garden which significantly increased the land levels.

8.2

Although the heights of the fences have been increased on the shared boundary
between the application site and 9 Leighton Road, due to the increase in land levels, the
development has resulted in overlooking to neighbouring gardens.

9.0

Conclusion

9.1

Due to the difference in land levels between the application site and neighbouring
gardens, the raised terrace impacts neighbour amenities in terms of overlooking and loss
of privacy. The most significant harm being caused to the neighbour at 9 Leighton Road.

10.0

Detail recommendation

10.1

Refuse planning permission for the following reasons:
The raised terrace allows for overlooking to neighbouring gardens to the east of the
application site which are on lower level land. The most significant harm being caused to
the neighbour at 9 Leighton Road where the land level significantly drops; the raised
terrace would result in overlooking to this garden, causing an unacceptable loss of
privacy.

Page 58

